ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 9, 2010
3:08 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel ler, Co-Chair
Representative Tamm e W/ son, Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON BY THE MAT- SU SUBSTANCE ABUSE PREVENTI ON COALI TI ON.
- HEARD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 35

Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
prohi biting passage of laws that interfere wth direct paynents
for health care services and the right to purchase health care
insurance from a privately owned conpany, and that conpel a
person to participate in a health care system

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 168

"An Act relating to state certification and designation of
trauma centers; creating the unconpensated trauma care fund to
of fset unconpensated traunma care provided at certified and
designated trauma centers; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 35

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM HEALTH CARE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY, KELLER, P.WLSON, GATTO

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -1- February 9, 2010



01/ 08/ 10 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 10

01/19/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H) HSS, JUD, FIN

02/ 09/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 168

SHORT TI TLE: TRAUMA CARE CENTERS/ FUND
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

03/ 09/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 09/ 09 (H) HSS, FIN

04/ 09/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 09/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 09/ 09 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 09/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ELI ZABETH RI PLEY, Executive D rector

Mat - Su Heal t h Foundati on;

Chair, W©Mat-Su Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition

Wasi |l | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a PowerPoint and answered
guestions about substance abuse in the Matanuska-Susitna
Bor ough

STEPHANI E ALLEN, Executive Director

United Way of Mat-Su

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
present ati on.

NIl COLE JEFFRI ES, Student

Wasi | la H gh School

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about the
Mat - Su  Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition and the Al aska
Heal t hy Ki ds Survey.

ROBYN HI LLMAN, St udent

Wasi | la H gh School

Wasil | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about the
Mat - Su Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition and the Al aska
Heal t hy Ki ds Survey.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 2- February 9, 2010



JESSI CA TRUMAI NE, St udent

Val | ey Pat hways School

Sutton, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about the
Mat - Su  Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition and the Al aska
Heal t hy Ki ds Survey.

HANNAH SM TH, St udent

Wasi | la H gh School

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about the
Mat - Su Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition and the Al aska
Heal t hy Ki ds Survey.

PATRI CK GONZER, St udent

Wasi |l a H gh School

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about the
Mat - Su  Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition and the Al aska
Heal t hy Ki ds Survey.

DEB HAYNES, Teacher

Wasi |l a H gh School

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about the
Mat - Su Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition and the Al aska
Heal t hy Ki ds Survey.

DESI REE COVPTON

United Way of Mat-Su

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions about the
Mat - Su  Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition and the Al aska
Heal t hy Ki ds Survey.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As the prine sponsor, presented and
answer ed questions for HIR 35.

M KE PRAX
North Pol e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 35.

PEGGY ANN MCCONNOCHI E
Nati onal Federation of Independent Business (NFIB)

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- February 9, 2010



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 35.

CHRI STI E HERRERA, Director

Heal t h and Human Servi ces Task Force

Aneri can Legi sl ative Exchange Council (ALEC)

Washi ngton, DC

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions in support
of HIR 35.

SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions as the
pri me sponsor of HB 168.

DAVI D HULL, Chair
Al aska Council| on Enmergency Medical Services (ACEM)
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 168.

DR. FRANK SACCO, Trauma Director

Al aska Native Medical Center;

Chair

Al aska State Trauma Systens Review Conmittee

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 168.

DR REG NA CHENNAULT, Chair

American Col | ege of Surgeons Conmttee on Trauma

Al aska Trauma System Review Conm ttee

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 168.

MARK JOHNSON

Al aska Trauma System Revi ew Conmittee

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 168.

WARD HURLBURT, Chief Medical Oficer;

Di rector

D vision of Public Health

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 168.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 4- February 9, 2010



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:08: 23 PM

CO CHAIR BOB HERRON cal |l ed the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 08 p. m
Representatives Herron, Keller, T. WIson, and G ssna were
present at the call to order. Representatives Lynn, Seaton, and
Hol mes arrived as the neeting was in progress.

Presentation by the Mat-Su substance abuse prevention coalition.

3:08: 44 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON announced that the first order of business would
be a presentation by the Mat-Su Substance Abuse Prevention
Coal i tion.

3:10: 27 PM

CO- CHAI R KELLER i ntroduced the coalition.

3:11: 27 PM

ELI ZABETH RI PLEY, Executive Director, WMut-Su Health Foundati on;

Chair, WMat-Su Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition, said that
subst ance abuse inpacts every sector of our conmmunity and our

econony. She pointed to the economic and enotional toll on
famlies and individuals, and declared that the cost was
st aggeri ng. She directed attention to each of the coalition
menbers and the various reasons for their involvenent. The

attending nenbers included N cole Jeffries, Robyn Hillman,
Jessica Trumain, Hannah Smth, Patrick Gonzer, Desire Conpton,
Deb Haynes, and G etchen Geist, and each shared their reason for
becom ng involved with the Coalition.

3:16: 27 PM

M5. RIPLEY endorsed that a key to breaking the cycle of
substance abuse was to engage youth, and she comrended each of

the people who contributed to make this presentation. She
directed attention to the PowerPoint, "Mit-Su Substance Abuse
Prevention Coalition Data Project.”™ [Included in the commttee
packet . ]

3:16:52 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 5- February 9, 2010



MS. RIPLEY described slide 1, "Mssion," and declared that the
focus was on youth in the local comunity.

3:17:13 PM

M5. RIPLEY introduced slide 2, "Overview' and slide 3, "Brief
H story,” and detailed the history of the coalition. She shared
that United Way of Anerica had tasked the local United Wy
groups to beconme comunity inpact organizations. She further
expl ained that the nodel of engagenent was to determ ne "what
hurts your community, or what changes could you make at your
| ocal level that you could nmeasure progress in to effect change
in quality of life." She stated that this affected every nenber
agency of United Way. She reported that the first step had been
to neet with the |ocal behavioral health providers where it was
agreed that the problem had to be addressed at the comunity
level to have any inpact. She reported that, after this
nmeeting, a substance abuse summt was held in Decenber, 2006,
and four goals were set: form a coalition using tobacco use
cessation as a nodel, be data driven for measureabl e progress,
coordinate a comunity response, and provide |eadership at the
state | evel .

3:22:26 PM

M5. RIPLEY noved to slide 4, "Method," and reported that the
council had reviewed the existing data on substance abuse in
Mat-Su; as very little data existed, a five year retrospective
study of |ocal data was conm ssioned, wth input from the | ocal
providers to determ ne neaningful data. She stated that the
Yout h Ri sk Behavior Survey (YRBS) data from 2005-06 reflected an
insufficient sanple size. She shared the inportance of the new
data survey, both as a benchmark and a neasurenent of progress.
She remarked that the group comm ssioned its own survey, "The
Al aska Healthy Kids Survey,”" (AHKS) and tested it to be
culturally appropriate and valid as a survey tool. She
clarified that it was financed by the Mat-Su Heal th Foundati on,
with no federal or state funds.

3:24:29 PM

STEPHANI E  ALLEN, Executive Director, United Wy of ©Mat-Su,
recogni zed slide 5 "Alaska Healthy Kids Survey," and explained
each of the survey conponents, which included denographic
information, and information on the behaviors and attitudes of
subst ance abuse. She noted the segnents on al cohol, tobacco,

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- February 9, 2010



drug use, violence, harassnent, safety, and crine. She tal ked
about the External Assets conponent which exam ned resilience
factors, protective factors, and positive assets associated with
a decrease in risky behaviors. She presented slide 6, "Survey
Denographics,” and shared that the survey was adm nistered to
all seventh, ninth, and eleventh graders throughout the school
district, which included Christian schools, honme schools, and
homel ess and at-risk youth. She detailed that 2435 of the 4000
surveys, 61 percent, were valid responses.

M5. ALLEN, in response to Co-Chair Herron, said that the YRBS
survey was very broad and included questions about health,
exerci se, sexual activity, and substance abuse behaviors. She
explained that this survey focused on substance abuse and youth
use.

3:27:19 PM

M5. ALLEN noted that slide 7,"Denographics,” was a denographic
breakdown of the students' surveyed.

3:27:30 PM

M5. RIPLEY, in response to Representative Seaton, said that the
denographics did correlate to the Mat-Su famlies with youth
but was slightly different than the conmunity as a whol e.

MS. ALLEN considered slide 8, "Results," and reported that after
receiving the data, the Coalition net w th stakehol der groups

enlisted feedback from nore than 130 community nenbers, and
devel oped the priorities for a strategic plan. She turned the
presentation over to the youth | eaders.

3:29:16 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked that each presenter detail "what surprised
t hem and what did not surprise them™

3:29:41 PM

Nl COLE JEFFRIES, Student, Wasilla H gh School, explained the
slide format: the question at the top, its definition in the
m ddle, and the results from mddle and high school students at
t he bottom She referred to slide 9, "Meaningful participation
from adults in the comunity,” and listed the definitions to
each included involvenment outside the home and school: with
personal interests, with group activities, and/or wth helping

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -7- February 9, 2010



ot her people. She shared that only 20 percent of mddle schoo
students and 18 percent of high school students felt involvenent
with adults in the comunity.

M5. JEFFRIES noved to slide 10, "Meaningful participation with
adults at home," which included doing fun things with parents,
doing things at hone that nade a difference, and nmaking
decisions with the famly. She reported that only 25 percent of
m ddl e school students and 21 percent of high school students
felt involved with adults at hone.

3:31:15 PM

M5. JEFFRIES provided slide 11, "Meaningful participation with
adults at school,” which included doing interesting activities,
deciding things like class activities and rules, and doing
things at school that make a difference. She disclosed that

only 6.4 percent of mddle school and 5.5 percent of high school
students felt engaged with adults at school.

3:31:43 PM

M5. JEFFRIES furnished slide 12, "Recommendation 1," and noted
that data suggested youth turn to substances because of boredom
She recommended that providing neaningful relationships wth
youth would result in their stronger resilience to challenges.

3:32:14 PM

ROBYN HI LLMAN, Student, Wasilla Hi gh School, supplied slide 13,
"Are parents talking to their Kkids about substance use?" and
ascertained fromthe pie graph that 36 percent of mddle schoo
and 42 percent of high school students did not talk with their
parents about substance use.

3:32:39 PM

M5. H LLMAN reviewed slide 14, "Wat age do our youth start
using?" and slide 15, "Age at first wuse,”" and noted the
conparative wuse of alcohol, <cigarettes, snokeless tobacco,
marijuana, and other illegal drugs by youth ages 10 and under,

14 and under, and 15 - 18.
3:33:21 PM

M5. HI LLMAN introduced slide 16, slide 17, and slide 18, all
entitled "Parent Perception of Use." The slides reflected the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- February 9, 2010



response to asking how parents would feel about drinking

regularly, snoking cigarettes, or snoking marijuana. She
acknowl edged that one parent could supply many students wth
cigarettes, alcohol, or marijuana. She pointed out that

preventi on needed to begin in the elenmentary school s.
3:34: 33 PM

M5. HI LLMAN continued on to slide 19, "Recomrendation 2," which
suggested to "lIncrease parental involvenent in prevention and
early intervention nmeasures in the Mat-Su Conmunity."

3:34:54 PM

JESSI CA TRUMAI NE, Student, Valley Pathways School, explained
slides 20 - 22, all entitled "Are substances difficult to get?"
and discussed the access to tobacco, alcohol, and nmarijuana.
She referred to the pie graphs on each slide, and noted that 54
percent of youth surveyed deened tobacco easy to obtain, 56
percent deened alcohol easy to obtain, and 47 percent stated
marij uana was easy to obtain.

3:36: 09 PM

M5. TRUMAINE shared that slide 23, "Recommendation 3," was to
reduce the access to these substances. She related that Mat-Su
youth were using a variety of substances and the nmajority of
students reported that al cohol, tobacco, and marijuana were easy
to obtain.

3:36:43 PM

HANNAH SM TH, Student, Wasilla H gh School, directed attention
to slide 24, "Data conparisons,” and explained that the next
series of slides would show graphs conparing data of tobacco

al cohol, and marijuana use from three separate surveys: Al aska
Healthy Kids Survey (AHKS), Monitoring the Future (MIF), and
Youth Ri sk Behavior Survey (YRBS). She summarized slide 26,
"Tobacco Lifetinme Cigarette Use," slide 27, "Tobacco 30 Day
Cigarette Use," slide 28, "Tobacco Lifetine Snokeless Tobacco
Use," and slide 29, "Tobacco 30 Day Snokeless Tobacco [Use]."
She pointed out that each graph illustrated the percentage of
use by study and by school grade.

M5. SMTH, in response to Representative Seaton, explained that
MIF was a national survey, but was not conducted in Al aska.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- February 9, 2010



M5. SMTH, referring to slide 28, opined that "we have a very
| arge issue with snokel ess tobacco.”™ She pointed out that high
school wuse of snokeless tobacco in the Mit-Su conmmunity was
hi gher than in the nation. She offered her belief that young
students were using snokel ess tobacco and that "if we wait, we
are mssing the train, we are conpletely mssing themif we wait
until mddle school and high school to talk to them they are
al ready doing it, they have already tried it."

M5. TRUMAINE, in response to Co-Chair Herron, said that the
subst ances, especially alcohol and cigarettes, were in the hones
and easy to get. She said that older friends were also able to
provi de these.

M5. SMTH added that prescription pills are often easily
accessi ble in honme nedici ne cabi nets.

M5. SMTH, in response to Co-Chair Herron, said that tobacco use
was "not a big deal.” She disclosed that only a handful of kids
felt that tobacco was not good for you, and strongly advocated
agai nst the use.

3:44: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if both use and increase was equal for
bot h sexes.

M5. SMTH replied that she would supply that data

3:45: 17 PM

PATRI CK GONZER, Student, Wasilla H gh School, introduced slide
30, "Alcohol,"” listing the negative effects of alcohol which
i ncl uded i npaired judgnent, l'iver di sease, cancer, and
dependence. He sunmarized slide 31, "Alcohol Lifetinme Al cohol
Use," slide 32, "Alcohol 30 Day Alcohol Use,” and slide 33,
"“Al cohol 30 Day Binge Drinking." He directed attention to the
AHKS survey, and noted that 68 percent of his peers drink
al cohol . He expressed his surprise to the high percentage of
al cohol wuse anpbng seventh graders. He described binge drinking

as "the typical party scene” and shared that the survey defined
it as five or nore drinks in one sitting.

3:47:15 PM

MR. GONZER discussed slide 34, "Marijuana,” and noted the
negative effects to be inpaired judgnent, problenms wth

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -10- February 9, 2010



intellectual functioning, and a greater risk of lung infections.
He indicated slide 35, "Lifetine Marijuana Use," and slide 36,
"30 Day Marijuana Use," and expressed his concern that 46
percent of his peers had used narijuana. He ascertained that
alnmost 18 percent of seventh and ninth graders had used
mar i j uana.

3:48: 24 PM

MR. GONZER, in response to Co-Chair Herron, declared that nore
than 2400 students at Houston, Wasilla, Valley Pathways, and
Burchell High Schools, as well as home schools, at-risk youth,
and Christian school students, had participated in the survey.

3:49: 03 PM

M5. TRUMAI NE observed that the discussion to this point had been
about al cohol, tobacco, and marijuana. She offered slide 37,
"Substance Use Totals,"”™ and noted that 68 percent of eleventh
graders used al cohol. She noved on to slide 38, "Substance use
Totals,” and pointed to neth, cocaine, heroin, ecstacy, and
hal | uci nogen use for ninth and el eventh graders. She conpared
that although hallucinogens had a 13 percent use by eleventh
graders, alcohol use was substantially higher. She expressed

her surprise that so many under 14 youth were using al cohol, and
determined that the focus [for reduced use] should begin wth
al cohol . She opined that alcohol was in every honme and was
easi |y accessi bl e.

3:51:17 PM

M5. TRUMAINE sunmarized slide 39, "Recommendation 4," and
suggested that it was necessary to increase conmunity awareness
and get the community nore invol ved. She pointed out that on a
national scale, Al aska ranked second for illicit drug use, and
sixth for binge drinking anong adults. She offered her belief
that binge drinking was the "very normal party scene" and that
it would continue.

3:52: 03 PM

DEB HAYNES, Teacher, Wasilla H gh School, said that she was al so
a private nental health practitioner. She confirned that slide
40, "Experiences from Al cohol and Drugs," described high schoo
students' reactions when they used drugs and al cohol. She noted
that about 25 percent said that they did not have any problem
but that 75 percent had a variety of experiences. She pointed

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -11- February 9, 2010



to the small nunber of students who needed therapy, and
reflected that these were the "very high end users”™ as it
required a lot of use to get into therapy. She shared that
students often confided in her, as she was a human rel ati ons and
psychol ogy teacher.

3:55:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES, responding to a remark by M. Haynes
during her testinony, asked if confidentiality was allowed for
hi gh school athletes and who the athletes could speak wth.

M5. HAYNES replied that that there was not any confidentiality
privilege for athletes, as teachers and counselors had an
obligation to report know edge that any athlete was a user. She
acknow edged, in response to Representative Holnes, that this
was a state rule. She opined that it was extrenely troubl esonme
for her to have to report any athletes who confided in her. She
clarified that she nade her obligation clear before anyone
confided in her.

3:57: 08 PM

M5. HAYNES reported the reason for the collection of this data
was because the YRBS data was not nmade available to them

3:57:49 PM

DESI REE COWPTON, United Way of Mat-Su, explained that the
community had set wup the Mt-Su Substance Abuse Prevention
Coalition to address issues at a comunity level in a culturally
appropriate and cost-effective way. She furnished slide 41,
"Coalitions are an effective solution” and pointed to the graph
which reflected that the Drug Free Coalition (DFC) coalition
areas had significantly |ower substance use rates than the
nati onal average. She affirned that the Coalition was applying
for DRC grants to aid its funding and teaching. She i ndi cated
slide 42, "Qur Coalition,” and detailed that the Coalition
i ncluded |l eaders from 12 sectors of the community, and focused
on prevention by identifying the risk factors and underlying

probl ens. She shared that the Coalitions utilized data and
information fromthe community | eaders, as well as environnental
strategies, to influence conmunity standards and policies. She

enphasi zed that the direction was to change the social norns
about drinking. She advocated for |aw and policy changes, which
i ncluded increasing parental awareness. She highlighted its
effort to coincide with the state plan to reduce underage

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -12- February 9, 2010



drinking by utilizing vyouth |eaders for |[ocal nmessagi ng
canpai gns.

4:01: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  T. WLSON asked if allowing students to
participate in surveys would effectively disconnect parents.

M5. COWPTON opined that parents would still be able to not allow
participation in any given survey.

4:02: 14 PM

M5. COWTON remarked on slide 43, "Call to Action,” and urged
for an understanding of the law and the powerful nessages that
it denonstrated, involvenent with the local coalition's goals,
and support of funding for |ocal research and preventi on.

4:04: 03 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER |l auded the efforts of the Coalition. He opi ned
that the econom c cost of substance abuse was "m nd-blow ng,"
and he issued a challenge for other conmunities to nove forward.

The conmttee took an at-ease from4:05 p.m to 4:08 p. m

HIR 35- CONST AM HEALTH CARE

4:08: 26 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 35 Proposing anmendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Al aska prohibiting passage of |aws
that interfere with direct paynents for health care services and
the right to purchase health care insurance from a privately
owned conpany, and that conpel a person to participate in a
health care system

4:09:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Alaska State Legislature, discussed
t he proposed national health care system and the backlash to the
mandat ed single payer system He noted that 35 other states
were also in opposition to the proposed national health care
system He explained that HIR 35 would protect the right to
choose participation in any given health care system and would
prohibit and fines or penalties for failure to participate; it

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -13- February 9, 2010



woul d protect the right to purchase or provide |awful nedical
services wthout governnment fines, interference or penalties.
He enphasized that HIR 35 would place these rights in the
Constitution of the State of Al aska. He offered his belief that
the majority of Al askans opposed mandated health care, and that
this mandate could result in a lawsuit. He opined that the U.
S. Suprene Court would lean toward the protection of personal
choi ce of health care.

4:14: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON decl ared that he recognized the intent of
HIR 35, and he directed attention to the proposed Section 2,

which stated in part: "no law shall be passed that conpels a
person, enployer, or health care provider to participate in a
health care system.." He asked if this would not allow the

state to initiate a newtier of the retirenent system
4:15: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY replied that he would research that
guesti on.

4:16:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to Medicare, Indian Health
Services, and other simlar nedical plans, and pointed out that
these had limts which violated the |anguage of HIR 35. She
expressed concern that this would tie the hands of |egislators
for any future changes and pointed specifically to the |anguage
in Section 2 (b) which stated: "prohibits a person from or that
penalizes a person for making direct paynment to a health care
provi der for tendering health care services."

4:18: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY offered his belief that HIR 35 did not have
any effect on prograns already in place. He reiterated that it
rei nforced personal choice.

4:20: 05 PM
CO- CHAIR HERRON asked Representative Kelly where the House
Health and Social Services Standing Conmmttee should focus its

policy debate, and then where he believed that the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conmittee woul d focus.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -14- February 9, 2010



4:20:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY suggested that each committee should | ook
at whether HIR 35 was "in the best overall health care interest
of the state.”

4:22:07 PM

CO- CHAIR HERRON clarified that proposed HIR 35 would be held in
the commttee until the followng week, and he suggested that
the House Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee debate
the health and social services aspect of it.

4:22:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA cited that nore than 100,000 Al askans did
not have health coverage. She shared that there were already
capacity problens within the health care system and she voiced
"that we are a state that is addicted to addictions.” She asked
how HIJIR 35 addressed the health care problens in Al aska. She
noted the difficulty of access to health care for many Al askans.

4:25:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY, in response to Representative G ssna,
di sclosed that he had served on a hospital foundation for 20
years. He agreed that the current health care system was in
need of i nprovenent. He opined that the governnent elenent was
a disincentive for doctors and that the nore separated the
patient was from the provider and the cost, the worse the
situation becane. He offered his belief that the heart of the
problem for the health care system was governnent centralized
control .

4:28:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarifications that HIR 35 would
not prevent the federal governnment from passing a |aw, but that
it would stop future legislatures from adopting a federal
program

4:30: 40 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY replied that the least effect of HIR 35

would be to send a signal to the federal governnent that Al aska
was agai nst additional federal controls over nedical choices.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- February 9, 2010



He said the strictest application would be Alaska's refusal to
conply with a federal mandate.

4:32:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that HIR 35 was an
anendnent to the Constitution of the State of Alaska to restrict
the legislature frompassing a law, even if that law was in the
public interest. He questioned if the proposed resol ution would
prevent the state from adopting a nedical plan wthout passing
or repealing a constitutional amendnent.

4:33:58 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY agr eed.
4:34: 03 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if Representative Kelly had heard
any concerns fromthe public.

4:34: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY replied that worries about a "head butt
with the federal governnent” and conplications to existing
prograns were the two concerns.

4:34:51 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if those two concerns were
stronger than the "fear that people have with being forced into
a program that they don't want and us sitting back as a state
acting like we don't care.”

4:35:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY offered his belief that the overwhel m ng
response was in support of HIR 35.

4:35:23 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER, as a prime co-sponsor of the bill, reported
that Arizona had vetted this legislation, and that nobst of the
questions had already been answered. He said that "precisely
what the bill does, it forbids any law that we have would be
unconstitutional that would forbid an individual in the State of
Alaska from securing nedical care outside of the required

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 16- February 9, 2010



nmedi cal system that is there." He opined that the constitution
was the law of the land and that this resolution would be voted
on by the people.

4:37:19 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON opened public testinony and said that he would
hold it open.

4:37:33 PM

M KE PRAX offered his support for HIR 35 as it "might set up a
confrontation between the state and the federal governnment over
this particular i ssue. " He opined that the federal
adm nistration assunmed it had absolutely authority and power.
He asked that the resolution be passed to protect "the
i ndi vidual right to nake decisions.”

4:39:21 PM

PEGGY ANN MCCONNOCHI E, Nat i onal Federation of Independent
Business (NFIB), shared that she and her husband were snal

busi ness owners. She offered her belief that the single payer
health care system did not fit for Alaskans, as it did not
provide |ower <cost, greater availability, or choice. She

enphasized that she was totally against what the federa
government was trying to do. She offered her opinion that smal
busi ness owners would easily go out of business with additiona
federal fees. She encouraged the protection of snall businesses
from unreasonabl e taxation, and any nmandates for health care for
enpl oyees.

4:42: 25 PM

CHRI STIE HERRERA, Director, Health and Human Services Task
Force, Anerican Legislative Exchange Council (ALEC), explained
that ALEC was a non-partisan organization of |awrakers. She
of fered support for HIR 35. She offered the belief that it
woul d ensure continued access to health services and the right
to pay directly for health services. She opined that it would
stop mandates that did not work, as a governnment requirenent for
health insurance was ineffective, bureaucratic, and costly. She
sumari zed that the cornerstone of any reform was the protection
of patients' rights.

4:45: 38 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -17- February 9, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to the proposed Section
2, which stated in part: "no law shall be passed that conpels a
person, enployer, or health care provider to participate in a
health care system.." He asked if this issue had arisen in any
other jurisdiction and would it restrict the state's ability to
initiate a newtier of the state retirenent system

M5. HERRERA agreed with Representative Kelly that this was a

forward looking bill, and would not affect current prograns.
She stated that there was no intent to affect any safety net
pr ogr amns. She agreed that it would preclude the state from

enacting an individual or an enployer mandate to purchase health
cover age.

4:47: 07 PM
CO CHAI R HERRON st ated that he woul d keep public testinony open.
[ HIR 35 was hel d over.]

HB 168- TRAUVA CARE CENTERS/ FUND

4:48: 03 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 168, "An Act relating to state certification
and designation of traunma centers; creating the unconpensated
trauma care fund to offset unconpensated trauma care provided at
certified and designated traunma centers; and providing for an
effective date.”

SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, Al aska State Legislature, explained that
HB 168 created an account for inproving trauma care delivery.
He explained that the Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) conm ssioner would create regulations based on national
standards for trauma care, and evaluate each delivery system

He referenced the packet, "Alaska Trauna Center,"” [Included in
t he menbers packets] which the information presented during the
prior year. He shared that this was just one incentive

suggested by the Coll ege of Surgeons to the State of Al aska. He
reported that DHSS had created a trauma response systens
adm ni strator. He detailed that he had net with the Enmergency
Medi cal Services Council, and was encouraged by its focus on
response systens, especially in renote areas. He expressed the
need to better coordinate energency response systens. He
detailed the desire to create a fund to incentivize hospitals to
enhance trauma care. He suggested putting noney toward

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 18- February 9, 2010



unconpensated care as it would allow hospitals to contract with
nore doctors for energency trauna care. He pointed out that
Al aska had 24 acute care hospitals, but only 1 Level Two traunma
center. He requested a systenmic approach to energency response
systens, and opined that creating incentives was a good place to
begi n. He pointed out that discussions were taking place with
mlitary doctors for a licensing structure to allow themto work
with the civilian hospitals. He summarized that the two nost
critical issues were equipping the nedical personnel in the
remote parts of Alaska, and creating a fund to incentivize the
hospitals to enhance the traunma care.

4:55: 37 PM
CO CHAI R HERRON opened public testinony.
4:55:52 PM

COCHAIR HERRON read a statenent from Representative G ssna
[original punctuation provided]:

"M . Chair: | have an unavoi dable conflict and won't
be able to remain in this neeting. Br oadeni ng the
di scussion wth all stakehol ders would be an
i mpr ovenent. I ncreasing other incentives also would
be beneficial. | amin favor of passage of this bill
(as well as strengthening the bill.)"

4:56: 15 PM

DAVID HULL, Chair, Al aska Council on Enmergency Mdical Services
(ACEMS), testified that he was speaking on behalf of ACEMS. He
opined that trauma calls were increasing every year. He defined
trauma as any bodily injury from an external source, and that it
could be accidental or intentional. He quoted statistics for
death and hospitalizations. He shared that a study in 2004
revealed that the hospital stay for trauma patients was nore
than $73 mllion, and that 1 in 4 was not conpensated care. He
defined a traunma system as a "pre-determ ned, organized, multi-
disciplinary response to managing the care and treatnent of
severely injured people,” and that a statew de system provided
"a framework for disaster preparedness and response.” He
enphasi zed that the nost inportant tine frame for survival of a
severely injured person was the tine between injury and
definitive care, "the Golden Hour." He opined that it was
necessary for increased hospital participation for the statew de
trauma systemto function optimally. He shared that the goal of

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -19- February 9, 2010



the statewi de trauma system was to ensure that every hospital in

Al aska was a designated trauma center. He testified in support
of funding for the devel opnent of trauma centers, incentives for
trauma care designation, and unconpensated patient care. He

of fered support for HB 168.
4:59: 31 PM

DR. FRANK SACCO, Trauma Director, Alaska Native Medical Center
Chair, Alaska State Trauma Systens Review Conmittee, explained
that trauma was the | eading cause of death for Al askans under 44
years of age, and that Alaska had the second highest rate of
trauma in the U S He opined that a good trauma system would
decrease the nortality by 15-25 percent. He reflected on prior
| egislation which was only voluntary with no incentives, and
consequently, there was only one Level 2 Trauma Center in
Al aska. He summarized an Anerican College of Surgeons review
that "the achievenents to date have been largely unplanned with
[imted coordination; as the result, incongruity exists with the
current trauma system"” He comrended the Al aska Native health
facilities for working toward trauma designation, but he decried
the lack of commtnment for "achieving nationally recognized
standards of trauma care" from nost health facilities. He
stated that Al aska was the only state without a Level 2 Trauma
Center for the mpjority of the population, and that Anchorage
was the largest city in the United States w thout a designated
Level 1 or Level 2 trauma center for the majority of the
popul ati on. He expressed support for HB 168, and decl ared that
it was not a partisan issue.

5:04: 06 PM

DR REA NA CHENNAULT, Chair, Anmerican College of Surgeons
Committee on Traunma, Alaska Trauma System Review Conmttee,
expressed concern that Al aska did not have a designated trauma
hospital for the general public. She reported that Al aska had a
lot of trauma, with a lot of donestic violence. She requested
that an organi zed, systens approach to trauma care be
i npl enmented as soon as possi bl e.

5:05:30 PM
MARK JOHNSON, Al aska Trauna System Review Conmittee, opined that
[trauma] care would be inproved if nore hospitals net the

nati onal standards. He referred to the 2008 Anerican Coll ege of
Surgeons review of Al aska hospitals which included 70

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 20- February 9, 2010



recommendations, of which 16 were listed as priority. He
supported the incentives within HB 168.

5:07: 30 PM
WARD HURLBURT, Chief Medical Oficer; Drector, D vision of

Public Health, Ofice of the Conm ssioner, Departnment of Health
and Social Services (DHSS), shared his personal experience as a

trauma physi ci an. He shared that trauma was the third highest
cause of death in Al aska, and the highest cause for ages up to
44 years. He reflected on the Anmerican College of Surgeons

trauma system review and noted with concern that the "traunma
infrastructure's unplanned, under devel oped, under resources,
and | acks sufficient coordination and integration.” He al so
expressed the administration's concern that Anchorage was the
|argest city in the US wthout Level 1 or 2 trauma centers

He shared that the adm nistration encouraged coll aboration anong
the health care systens and the developnment of a "nore mature
trauma system"” He stated that the adm nistration was neutra

on HB 168.

5:11:55 PM
CO CHAI R HERRON not ed a proposed anendnent for funding.
5:12: 23 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL replied that it was a good anmendnment, but that
t he fundi ng woul d be drawn fromthe general fund.

5:12: 48 PM

[HB 168 was hel d over.]

5:13: 28 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 5:13 p. m

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -21- February 9, 2010



